GREATER LOUISIANA BAPTIST CONVENTION, INC.

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION & BYLAWS



WILLIE MAYNARD, JR., PRESIDENT

JOHN E. MONTGOMERY II, VICE PRESIDENT

JAMES S. HARDISON, SR., GENERAL SECRETARY

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF THE GREATER LOUISIANA BAPTIST CONVENTION, INC.

ARTICLE I - NAME

The name of this corporation shall be **Greater Louisiana Baptist Convention**, **Inc.**

ARTICLE II – MISSION AND CORPORATE PURPOSES

- **2.1 Mission**. The mission of the Convention is to Empower Kingdom Growth by assisting and encouraging affiliated churches and associations to fulfill the Great Commission as given by our Lord in Matthew 28:19-20.
- **2.2. Vision Statement**. With compassion for spiritually lost people and anticipation of Jesus' return, we will work cooperatively with local churches and associations and other partners to:
 - a. Strengthen existing churches in fulfilling their biblical purpose; our job will be to empower church leaders to do the work of ministry in the local church. Therefore we will work to teach, equip and train church leaders with proven resources to build up the body of Christ.
 - b. **Send** believers into local, state, national and world mission fields to proclaim the Gospel and serve others in the name of Christ; and
 - c. Encourage and support Christian education; we believe the key to growing the church and connecting people is Christian Education. Accordingly, we will reaffirm our commitment to assist churches to minister effectively with this proven foundational cornerstone.
 - d. Stimulate stewardship among churches so that God's resources flow faithfully and generously through His people to His worldwide redemptive mission.
 - e. **Excellence**; we believe that our Lord deserves our best in all that we do; therefore, we will seek to serve Him and others with the highest possible degree of excellence.
 - Each congregation is an independent unit, but has a covenantal relationship with the others and with the wider church. The Convention will assist churches who are seeking pastors, oversee students who are preparing for ministry, will be a resource for pastors

and congregations, plan various programmatic events, administer a budget (supported by assessments from church, associations and individuals).

- We commit ourselves to operating with the highest level of personal, organizational and financial integrity.
- We believe that the local church is God's chosen instrument to reach and disciple people and our task is to support, undergird and extend the ministry of the local church.
- We commit ourselves to cooperate at every level of Greater Louisiana Baptist Convention life to accomplish more together than we can separately.

This corporation is organized for charitable, religious and educational purposes, including, for such purposes the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

In order to carry out its purposes, the Corporation shall have all those powers set forth in Title 12, Chapter 2, Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as it now exists or as it may hereafter be amended. The powers of the Corporation to promote its purposes are limited and restricted in the following manner:

No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article II hereof. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (A) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or (B) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

There are three categories of membership in the Convention: Constituent Baptist Churches, Baptist Associations and Baptist individuals

ARTICLE IV - VOTING

Only constituent church shall be entitled to voting by classes (A, B, C, and D). The fees to be assessed will be spelled out in the Bylaws as well as the number of votes for each class.

No individual member shall cast more than one vote in the proceedings of this Convention.

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

The officers of this Convention shall be as follows:

- President
- Vice President-at-Large
- Five Regional Vice Presidents
 - Five Vice Presidents
- General Secretary
- Treasurer
- Parliamentarian
- The President of each of the following auxiliaries:
 - Ushers
 - Women
 - Laymen
 - Congress
 - Evangelism
 - o Prison
 - Nursing Home
 - o Other
- Youth/Young Adult Ministry
- Young Pastor-Preachers Division

- Music Ministry
- Social Justice
- A Member-at-Large, in good standing, appointed by the President.
- All other officers as deemed necessary by the Corporation.

The president shall be elected by the Constituent Membership of the Convention at an Annual Session designated for that purpose. No person shall be elected or serve as President who is not a member of the Convention and in good standing with the constituent entities from which that constituent membership is based.

The Board of Directors shall prescribe the nomination, campaign and election process, and shall be the arbiter of any election questions, disputes, or controversies with final judgment on such matters to be made by the Convention acting as a committee of the whole. All other officers shall be nominated by the president and confirmed by the Convention as a whole according to procedures prescribed by the Bylaws to this constitution. Upon election as prescribed by this constitution the president-elect and such other persons or officers designated by the president-elect shall promptly be apprised of any matters pertaining to the work of the Convention, including its fiscal affairs, home, and foreign mission activities, and any other information pertinent to effecting an orderly transition from the previous administration.

Each officer shall be elected for a four-year term, and shall not be eligible to serve more than two consecutive terms in the same office. After being out of office for one term, a person may seek and be eligible for re-election. This provision regarding tenure and term limits shall apply to all officers, auxiliary leaders and officials, and department heads. However, this provision shall not preclude term-limited officers from being elected to different offices.

ARTICLE VI - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of this Convention shall be composed of the following officers designated in Article V hereof.

The Board of Directors, subject to final review by the Convention, acting as a committee of the whole, shall have the power to investigate any alleged misconduct on the part of any officer, auxiliary official, commission member or official, or any other person holding office or position of trust or responsibility within the Convention, its auxiliaries, commissions, or Boards, and shall also have the power to suspend and remove any such persons from holding office, if such action is deemed in the best interest of the Convention. All such investigations and any disciplinary actions taken by the Board pursuant thereto

shall be effective when taken by the Board, but shall become final only upon review and approval by the convention as committee of the whole.

Any person convicted of a felony may hold office after his character and status have been reviewed by the convention acting as a committee of the whole.

ARTICLE VII - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee of the Board of Directors shall consist of ten persons: the President, Vice-President-at-Large, General Secretary, Five Regional Vice Presidents, Treasurer, and Parliamentarian. The Executive Committee shall transact business referred to it by the Board of Directors, shall be chaired by the President or his designee, and is accountable to the Board of Directors for the performance of its duties.

ARTICLE VIII - DOMICILE

The principal office of the Convention shall be located at 225 North Avenue C, Crowley, Louisiana 70526 or such other location designated by the Board of Directors. The Convention President or his designee shall be the registered agent of the Convention.

ARTICLE IX - MEETINGS

This Convention shall hold annual meetings on Monday after the third Sunday of July of each year or on such date as may be established by majority vote of the Convention in regular session, at such place as shall be selected from time to time. The order of business shall be determined by the by-laws or by vote of the Convention, with the provision that regular election of officers shall be made on the third day of any regular annual meeting.

Conference meetings of the Convention shall convene at a place designated by the Board of Directors the Tuesday and Wednesday after the first Sunday in February, May and November, subject to change by the President or Board of Directors.

Special meetings may be called by the president when he deems it appropriate, to be held at such time and place as he designates. A special meetings may be called by the President or any vice-president upon the application of a majority of the members of the Executive Committee, said meeting to be held at such time and place as designated by those making application. Notice of any special meeting shall be sent to the last address provided by each member via U. S. Postal Service, E-mail transmissions, facsimile, or any other effective method of transmittal chosen, to every member in good standing at least 5 working days prior to the date of the meeting.

ARTICLE X - POWERS

Should any member chose to litigate, adjudicate, or arbitrate a dispute or question regarding membership rights, privileges and procedures of this Body in the secular courts or any other forum other than that prescribed by this constitution in violation of this Section, then he/she shall pay unto the Convention reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the Convention in the prosecution and/or defense of same.

ARTICLE XI - FISCAL YEAR

The calendar year shall begin on the 1st day of January and end with the last day of December.

ARTICLE XII - EXISTENCE

This corporation shall enjoy existence in perpetuity.

The incorporators are:

ARTICLE XIII - DISSOLUTION

Upon dissolution of the corporation, assets shall be distributed by the <u>Board</u> of Directors, after paying or making provisions for the payment of all debts, obligations, liabilities, costs and expenses of the corporation for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c) (3) of the internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government or to a state or local government, for a public purpose. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be deposed of by a Court of Competent Jurisdiction of the parish in which the principal office of the corporation is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

ARTICLE XIV - INCORPORATORS

Willie Maynard Jr.	
Willie Maynard Jr	President
Crowley, LA 70526	
John E. Montgomery, II	
911 Lobdell Blvd.	Vice-President-At-Large
Baton Rouge, LA 70806	•

James S. Hardis	son, Sr	
	ark Avenue dria, LA 71301	General Secretary
•	r	
	airfields Avenue Rouge, LA 70802	Congress President
Conway L. Knig	hton	
	ue Splendeur A 70714	Vice President
AGENTS AF	FIDAVIT AND ACKNO	OWLEDGEMENT OF ACCEPTANCE
•	vledge and accept the a above named corporate	appointment of registered agent for and tion.
Registered ager	nt(s) signature(s):	
Sworn to and su	ubscribed before me, th	e undersigned Notary Public, on this
date:		
NOTARY	NAME MUST BE TYPE	ED OR PRINTED WITH NOTARY #
	Notary	Signature

BYLAWS OF THE GREATER LOUISIANA BAPTIST CONVENTION, INC.

ARTICLE I - NAME

The name of this organization shall be Greater Louisiana Baptist Convention, Inc. hereafter referred to as the "Convention."

ARTICLE II - MISSION AND CORPORATE PURPOSES

- **2.1 Mission**. The mission of the Convention is to Empower Kingdom Growth by assisting and encouraging affiliated churches and associations to fulfill the Great Commission as given by our Lord in Matthew 28:19-20.
- **2.2. Vision Statement**. With compassion for spiritually lost people and anticipation of Jesus' return, we will work cooperatively with local churches and associations and other partners to:
 - a. Strengthen existing churches in fulfilling their biblical purpose; our job will be to empower church leaders to do the work of ministry in the local church. Therefore we will work to teach, equip and train church leaders with proven resources to build up the body of Christ.
 - b. **Send** believers into local, state, national and world mission fields to proclaim the Gospel and serve others in the name of Christ; and
 - c. **Encourage** and support Christian education; we believe the key to growing the church and connecting people is Christian Education. Accordingly, we will reaffirm our commitment to assist churches to minister effectively with this proven foundational cornerstone.
 - d. **Stimulate stewardship** among churches so that God's resources flow faithfully and generously through His people to His worldwide redemptive mission.
 - e. **Excellence**; we believe that our Lord deserves our best in all that we do; therefore, we will seek to serve Him and others with the highest possible degree of excellence.

Each congregation is an independent unit, but has a covenantal relationship with the others and with the wider church. The Convention will assist churches who are seeking pastors, oversee students who are preparing for ministry, will be a resource for pastors and congregations, plan various programmatic events, administer a

budget (supported by assessments from church, associations and individuals).

- We commit ourselves to operating with the highest level of personal, organizational and financial integrity.
- We believe that the local church is God's chosen instrument to reach and disciple people and our task is to support, undergird and extend the ministry of the local church.
- We commit ourselves to cooperate at every level of Greater Louisiana Baptist Convention life to accomplish more together than we can separately.
- f. Generally to engage in any and all activities which may be lawfully permitted by a corporation authorized under the applicable laws, statutes, rules and regulations of the State of Louisiana and exempt from Federal Income Tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws or a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws.
- g. In order to carry out its purposes, the Corporation shall have all those powers set forth in Title 12, Chapter 2, Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as it now exists or as it may hereafter be amended. The powers of the Corporation to promote its purposes are limited and restricted in the following manner:

No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article Two hereof. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (A) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future

federal tax code, or (B) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

ARTICLE III - PRINCIPAL OFFICE AND CORPORATE AGENT

The principal office of the Convention shall be located at 225 North Avenue C, Crowley, LA 70526, or such other location designated by the Board of Directors. The Convention President or his designees shall be the registered agent of the Convention.

ARTICLE IV - MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

- **4.1 Categories of Membership**. There are three categories of membership in the Convention as described in Article III of the Articles of Incorporation: Constituent Baptist Churches, Baptist Associations and Baptist Individuals.
- 4.2 Meetings. Pursuant to Article IX of the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention, the annual meeting of the Convention shall convene at a place designated by the Board of Directors on the Monday following the third Sunday in July. A musical, sponsored by the local association, will commence on the third Sunday in July.

Pursuant to Article IX of the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention, Conference meetings of the Convention shall convene at a place designated by the Board of Directors on the Tuesday and Wednesday after the first Sunday in February, May and November, subject to change by the President or Board of Directors.

4.3 Special Meetings: Special meetings of the Convention may be called by the president or any vice-president when deemed appropriate upon the application of a majority of the members of the Executive Committee, said meeting to be held at such time and place as designated by those making application. Notice of any special meeting shall be sent to the last address provided by each member via U. S. Postal Service, E-mail transmissions, facsimile, or any other effective method of transmittal chosen, to every member in good standing at least five (5) working days prior to the date of the meeting.

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

- **5.1** Pursuant to Article V of the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention, the officers of this Convention shall be as follows:
 - President

- Vice President-at-Large
- Five Regional Vice Presidents
 - Five Vice Presidents
- General Secretary
- Treasurer
- Parliamentarian
- The President of each of the following auxiliaries:
 - Ushers
 - Women
 - Laymen
 - Congress
 - Evangelism
 - Prison
 - o Nursing Home
 - o Other
- Youth/Young Adult Ministry
- Young Pastor-Preachers Division
- Music Ministry
- Social Justice
- A Member-at-Large, in good standing, appointed by the President.
- All other officers as deemed necessary by the Corporation.
- **5.2 President:** The President shall serve as chief executive officer of the Convention and shall preside over all business meetings of the Convention and of its Directors unless he designates some other person as presiding officer.
- 5.3 Vice President-at-Large: The Vice President-at-Large shall, pursuant to the direction of the President, assist the President in such matters and manner as the President may direct and shall succeed to the office of President in the event of the death, retirement, resignation, or removal from office of the person serving as President. The Vice President-at-Large can only succeed to the office of President after review by the Board.

- **5.4 Regional Vice Presidents**: A vice-president shall be confirmed by the Convention for each of the following geographic regions and shall perform such duties as directed by the President:
 - Northwest Region
 - Northeast Region
 - Central Region
 - Southwest Region
 - Southeast Region

The Regional Vice-Presidents shall perform such other duties as required.

The Regional Vice-Presidents from each region shall recommend to the President one person for the positions of vice-presidents. These vice-presidents will report directly to the Regional Vice-Presidents and perform such duties as mandated by the Convention President.

5.5 General Secretary: The General Secretary shall compile the official record of the Annual and Regional Meetings of this Convention, and shall perform such other duties as directed by the President.

The General Secretary shall have up to four assistants who will be assigned duties at the discretion of the general secretary. All other secretaries should submit their records, signed and dated, to the General Secretary.

- 5.6 Treasurer: The Treasurer shall, in cooperation with the Director of Finance and the accounting firm designated to audit Convention accounting records, provide corporate oversight and accountability for Convention fiscal affairs and property management. The Treasurer shall present an annual report regarding Convention assets, liabilities and property holdings as directed by the President during the Annual Meeting.
- **5.7 Parliamentarian**: The Parliamentarian shall advise and assist the President regarding Convention polity, procedure, and such other matters as the President may direct.
- 5.8 Nominating Procedure for President: There shall be a Nominating Committee appointed by the Board of Directors, and tasked with receiving and verifying submissions related to nominations for the office of President. Any person interested in running for the office of President shall be required to submit a written Petition for Nomination to the

Convention headquarters addressed to the attention of the Nominating and Credentials Commission on or before the close of the November Board meeting of the election year. The Nominating and Credentials Commission shall certify the names of all nominees who have satisfied the petition requirement at the February Board meeting of the election year.

- 5.9 Election Commission: The Board of Directors, shall designate an election Commission composed of the following membership: (a) Each credentialed candidate for the office of President shall designate two members to the Commission; (b) three members to the Commission shall be designated by the Board of Directors. The Commission shall exist to authenticate the identity of each voting delegate and to verify the integrity of the election process. This provision shall not alter or otherwise minimize the power and responsibility of the Board of Directors as the arbiter of any election questions, disputes or controversies, with final judgment on such matters to be made by the Convention acting as a Committee of the Whole.
- **5.10 Prerequisites of President**: Candidates seeking the office of President of the Convention must meet the following pre-requisites:
 - Must have registered for the last four (4) consecutive years;
 - Must be active in the affairs of the Convention;
 - Must have been a pastor for at least five (5) years;
 - Cannot be a convicted felon
 - Must be a person of Christian integrity;
 - Must be a Baptist pastor
- 5.11 Election of President: Pursuant to Article III of the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention, the President shall be elected by the constituent churches and the associations of the Convention at an Annual Meeting designated for that purpose. No person shall be elected or serve as President who is not a member of a Constituent Church and in good standing with the entity from which that constituent member is based (church). In all instances, any constituent member must have registered with the Convention at the Annual Meetings prior to the presidential election in order for its members to cast their vote during the presidential election. All persons eligible to vote must register not later than noon on Tuesday of the Annual Meeting. Voting shall take place from seven o-clock a. m. (7 a.m.) until seven o-clock (7 p.m.) on Wednesday of the Annual Session and shall be conducted using electronic voting machines or other automated methods approved by the

Board of Directors under conditions that protect the confidentiality of voters and the integrity of the election process. Elections results shall be announced during Wednesday night meeting. In the event that a sitting President is unopposed following the nomination period, the Convention shall re-elect the President by acclamation (voice or standing) vote upon motion during the Wednesday night meeting of the Annual Meeting. In the event of the death, incapacity, retirement, resignation, or removal from office of an unopposed sitting President during the interim between the meetings, the Vice-President-at-Large shall complete the remaining period of the unexpired term and continue to serve as President until a successor is elected at the Annual Meeting of the following year. The Board of Directors shall prescribe the nomination, campaign, and election process, and shall be the arbiter of any election questions, disputes or controversies, with final judgment on such matters to be made by the Convention acting as a Committee of the Whole.

- 5.12 Election of Officers other than President: Upon election, the President-Elect shall nominate all other officers for consideration and confirmation by the convention as a whole. No person shall be nominated, by the President or otherwise, to serve in any office who is not a member in good standing with a constituent member of the convention. All candidates for officers must have Christian integrity. All other officers shall be confirmed in office upon election by the Convention as a whole.
- 5.13 Tenure of Office and Filling Unexpired Terms: Pursuant to Article III of the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention, each officer shall be elected for four-year term, and shall not be eligible to serve more than two consecutive terms in the same office. After being out of office for one term, a person may seek to be eligible for re-election to that office. This provision regarding tenure and term limits shall apply to all officers, auxiliary leaders and officials, and department heads. However, this provision shall not preclude term-limited officers from being elected to different offices. In the event of vacancies in office that occur prior to the end of a term, any person elected or confirmed to a vacated office shall serve the unexpired term of the person whose office was vacated. Service in an unexpired term shall not prohibit eligibility to election or confirmation to two consecutive terms in that office.
- 5.14 Disciplinary Action Regarding Officers: Pursuant to Article VI of the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention, the Board of Directors, subject to final review by the Convention acting as a Committee of the Whole, shall have the power to investigate any alleged misconduct on the part of any officer, auxiliary official, commission member or official, or any other person holding office or position of trust or responsibility within the Convention, its auxiliaries, commissions, or boards, and shall also have

the power to suspend and remove any such persons from holding office if such action is deemed in the best interest of the Convention. All such investigations and any disciplinary actions taken by the Board pursuant thereto shall be effective when taken by the Board, but shall become final only upon review and approval by the Convention sitting as Committee of the Whole. A two-thirds majority vote of the Board of Directors shall be required in all cases involving removal and suspension from office. Upon appeal to or review by the Convention as Committee of the Whole, the decision of a simple majority vote shall be final and binding.

ARTICLE VI - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- **6.1** The Board of Directors of this Convention shall consist of the persons identified at Article V of the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention.
- **6.2 Quorum**: A quorum shall consist of members present and voting at any meeting or called meeting. Meetings shall be guided according to Biblical Principals and Robert's Rules of Order.
- **6.3 Meetings of the Board of Directors**: The Board of Directors shall meet in regular session on Thursday of the Annual and Monday of all conference meetings of the Convention or at any time deemed necessary. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall prepare and maintain regular minutes of all Board meetings.
- 6.4 Majority Vote: Upon all matters decided by vote other than actions to remove or suspend a person from office or expulsion from the Convention, the act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting where a quorum is present shall be the valid act of the Board of Directors. A two-thirds vote shall be required in order to effect the removal or suspension of a person from office or expulsion from the Convention.
- 6.5 Executive Committee of the Board of Directors: Pursuant to Article VII of the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention, the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors shall consist of nine persons: the President, Vice-President-at-Large, General Secretary, Regional Vice Presidents, and Treasurer. The Executive Committee shall transact business referred to it by the Board of Directors, shall be chaired by the President or his designee, and is accountable to the Board of Directors for the performance of its duties.

ARTICLE VII – NOTICE, AMENDMENT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

7.1 Notice: Wherever written notice is required to be given by these Bylaws, Article of Incorporation or otherwise, and no provision is

prescribed on how notice is to be given, such notice may be given in any of the following ways: (a) personal notice delivered to the person or entity to whom notice is due with or without signed receipt; (b) by mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the person or entity to whom notice is due at the address appearing in the records of the Convention; or (c) such other method permitted by law. Any notice required or permitted to be given by mail shall be deemed issued as of the date that it is deposited in the United States mail.

- 7.2 Amendment of Bylaws: These Bylaws may be amended, repealed, or otherwise altered at a regular session of the Convention or a Special Session called for that purpose by majority vote of those members present and voting at such meeting, provided that the following preconditions are satisfied:
 - a. The written text of any proposed amendment or other alteration of the Bylaws, along with a written statement explaining the rationale for the proposed amendment or other alterations and its intended effect, shall first be submitted to the Secretary of the Board of Directors and the President of the Convention not later than twenty days prior to the November and May meetings in the year in which the proposed amendment is presented to the Convention for consideration.
 - b. The Board of Directors shall study each proposed amendment or other alteration and determine, in the first instance, whether to directly recommend the amendment or other alteration to the membership at an Annual of Conference meeting of the Convention or refer the proposed amendment or other alteration to a duly appointed committee for analysis and recommendation. No change proposed to these Bylaws shall be considered by the Convention without initial study and analysis by the Board of Directors.
 - c. The Board of Directors shall, in all instances, determine whether a proposed amendment or other alteration shall be presented to the Convention membership. No proposed amendment or other alteration to these Bylaws shall be presented to the Convention membership unless a simple majority of the Directors assembled at the Board meeting when it is presented for vote assent to its presentation to the Convention membership.
 - d. Following review by the Board of Directors as aforementioned in this Article VII, the written text of a proposed amendment shall be presented during the November or May meeting of the Convention, accompanied by a written statement explaining the rationale for the proposed amendment and its intended effect, so that the membership can deliberate and decide on its adoption.

e. Each adopted amendment or other alteration to these Bylaws shall take effect upon adoption and have effect from the time of adoption forward.

7.3 Rules Due to the Absence of Parliamentary or Governance Authority.

Whenever the Revised Constitution and/or these Bylaws do not specify the procedures to be followed in a given situation, and in the absence of scriptural authority to the contrary, the convention, its Board of Directors, and all subsidiary, auxiliary, and other entities shall be guided by the current version of Biblical principals or Robert's Rules of Order on questions of parliamentary procedure or governance.

7.4 Rules of Construction.

- a. If any portion or provision of these Bylaws shall be declared or invalid or inoperative, that declaration shall not render the remaining portion of these Bylaws invalid or inoperative.
- b. These Bylaws are to be read in conformity with, are subject to, and shall be governed by the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of these Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation of the Convention, the provisions of the Amended Articles of Incorporation of the Convention shall be deemed the superior authority and control Convention procedure and conduct.

CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION

The foregoing Bylaws of the Convention have been recommended for approval
by the Board of Directors on, and have
been duly adopted by the Constituent Membership of the Convention
on
IN TESTIMONY THEREOF, witness the hand of the undersigned as
Secretary of the Board of Directors.
Secretary of the Board of Directors
Date

